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	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
14 North Street

	Historic Name:
Joseph Little House

	Uses:
Present: 
single residence

	Original: 
two-family residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1830

	Source:  historic maps, deeds, visual analysis

	Style/Form:   
Greek Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
stone

	Wall/Trim:  
wood clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


Barn (attached)

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


none


	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage:  1.0 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the northwest side of North Street one lot north of its intersection with Main Street. The relatively large lot has mature trees, and the area is largely residential.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Joseph Little House is a two-story wood frame dwelling located on the westerly side of North Street just north of Main Street.  Built ca. 1830, the house initially contained separate living units for the bachelor and a second family.  The large house and spacious interior plan with two rooms on either side of a center passage and a rear kitchen wing would have provided ample space for the residents.  Internal chimneys centered in the gable roof provided heat for all the rooms.  While the two-story form and internal chimneys are common to earlier Georgetown houses, although most of them with plans only one room deep and hipped roofs, the exterior decoration of the house reflects the Greek Revival taste popular in the 1830s and 1840s.  The five-bay front façade is framed by wide pilasters with simple capitals and a tall frieze across the tops of the second-story windows.  The later addition of eaves and box gutters to the house has obliterated the original cornices.  A characteristic exterior vestibule containing the center entrance has the same pilasters at its corners and a Greek entablature with a tall frieze.  Taller windows also are characteristic of the period; the two-over-two wood sash were added later in the 19th century.  
Additional entrances are centered in the end walls, which also indicate the existence of an interior divided for different functions.  The one on the north wall is sheltered by a hood mounted on brackets added in the late 19th century, while the one on the south side is unembellished and may date to late 20th century when the house contained an optometrist’s office.  Pairs of windows of similar era flank the entrance on the north wall, while there a one-story bay window, also a late-19th-century addition, on the south side.  Two widely-spaced windows occupy the second story on both ends.  A short, one-story hyphen connects the house to a small barn.  The absence of a rear ell indicates that the kitchen was within the house.  The barn has been altered with the addition of two car bays with overhead doors on the south side.  .
The deep one-acre lot extends from North Street back to a wetland in the center of the block bounded by North, Prospect and West Main streets.  Most of the area is dedicated to lawn, with the rear section now wooded. A paved driveway enters the property along the south lot line and terminates at a parking area in front of the attached barn.
The Joseph Little House, built c. 1830, is architecturally significant as a distinctive Greek Revival-style residence of unusual physical integrity in Georgetown center.  Its association with the town’s earliest shoe manufacturers, as well as with later noteworthy residents is historically significant.  The quality and integrity of the house and connected barn along with its historical associations combine to make it eligible for the National Register.  The building also is a contributing component of the village district.     
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
The house at 14 North Street appears on the 1830 map of Georgetown with the name “J. Little” attached to it. Born in neighboring West Newbury in 1784, Joseph Little was the tenth and youngest child of farmer and shoemaker Joseph Little Sr. and his wife Mary Johnson. With his older brother Benjamin, born in1780, Joseph Little came to what was then New Rowley in 1810 and began manufacturing shoes at the head of Elm Street. According to an account written by the brothers’ niece Sarah Anna Emery, Joseph Little began making shoes in a shop on the Major Paul Nelson farm with Lewis Hatch, and Benjamin Little later joined them there and hired the shop and farm from Nelson. The Little brothers also operated a store in conjunction with their shoe shop, and at some unspecified point they moved both the shoe shop and the store to the “Corner,” or town center. A 1922 Georgetown history describes the origin of the Littles’ business:

Beginning some thirty years before 1810 shoe manufacturing was “carried on” by the tanners in conjunction with their tanning business. The leather (both upper and under stock) was “given out” in the sides. This was “worked up” into boots and shoes by the farmers, and others, when the weather and other conditions were such that they could do nothing else; but with the opening of the year 1810 there began a new era in the history of our people, for in that year the two brothers Benjamin and Joseph Little came here and began the manufacture of boots and shoes on a large scale in a building located near the ancient parish church on the old South Green, on Elm street. Besides “carrying on the shoe business,” the Littles “ran” a very large “West India and Dry Goods Store,” where could be purchased a cambric needle or an ox-yoke, a quintal of salt mackerel, a gallon or a barrel of rum. Much of their merchandise they bartered for boots and shoes that the farmers made during their off hours, rainy days and during the winter months.

Neither Joseph nor Benjamin Little married, and neither is shown in the 1840 Georgetown census, presumably because both boarded with families even as they owned substantial property in the town, including houses. Benjamin Little died in 1850 at the age of sixty-five, and from at least 1830 until his death in 1861, Joseph lived with the merchant Moses Carter and his family. According to local historian Henry Mighill Nelson, the house at 14 North Street was built at the time the Littles moved their business from Elm and East Main Streets to Georgetown center, which he dated to “about 1814.”
  However, the form and design of the house, particularly when compared to the house Benjamin Little built at 38 East Main Street at that time, reflects a construction date much closer to 1830 when it is depicted on the Georgetown map.  It seems likely that Joseph Little and the Carter family initially resided in the store building at the corner and later moved into the existing house.  
The federal census of 1850 shows Little as a sixty-five-year-old farmer with $14,540 in real property living with the Carter family; Nelson asserted in his 1888 history of the town that the Carters were “relatives” of the Little, but, if true, their exact relation is not yet known.
 Born in Wilmington, Massachusetts, in 1797, Moses Carter was a merchant and later a manufacturer of patent medicines who had married Almira Platts, the daughter of John Platts of Bradford and Mary P. Palmer of Georgetown, in 1822. The couple had six children between 1823 and 1842—John William, Mary Ann, Sarah Palmer, Charles Lyman, Luther F., and Moses Francis—the four youngest of whom lived with the Carters and Little in 1850. The 1860 census shows Little as a seventy-five-year-old merchant with $18,755 in real property and $8910 in personal estate. Moses Carter is shown in the same household with $280 in real property (perhaps the shop where he made his patent medicines with his sons Luther and Moses F.) and $2000 in personal property. Three of the Carter children—Charles, Luther, and Sarah, a schoolteacher—still lived at home, and the family had a live-in domestic servant.

Joseph Little died on 29 December 1861. His death record states the cause of death as “congestion of brain,” and the 1860 census classified him as “insane.”
 In January 1864 Little’s many heirs at law, all nieces and nephews, sold his house and other buildings to Nathaniel Lambert and his son William K. Lambert, who had acquired Joseph Little’s “Little’s Corner” properties—including a store, a barn, other buildings, and 42 square rods of land—to the Lamberts for $3000 less than three months earlier.
 The Carters moved to Main Street; Almira Platts Carter died in March 1869, and Moses Carter died in September 1870.
Born in Newbury, Vermont, in 1792, Nathaniel Lambert was the son of the Rev. Nathaniel Lambert and Dolly Pickard, who were married in Pickard’s native town of Rowley in 1791.  His father was a graduate of Brown University and had been called to preach at the First Congregational Church in Newbury, Vermont in May 1790; he was ordained and installed as minister in November that year. Like many other settlers of that town, Lambert was from Newbury, Massachusetts, and he remained in the Vermont pulpit until 1809, when he was dismissed after suing the town for failure to pay his salary.
 Nathaniel Lambert Jr. had returned to his father’s native area by 1822, when he married Anstress Perley of Boston in Rowley. Their first child, William Kilham Lambert, was born in Rowley in 1823.
By 1850 Nathaniel Lambert was boarded at Dunbar’s Hotel in Georgetown and working as a grocery merchant “in the old store which stood near where George J. Tenney’s house now is,” at 30 East Main Street.
 The 1860 census shows him in Georgetown with $2500 in personal property. His wife had by then died, and he shared his household with his son William, William’s wife Caroline Richardson Lambert, a native of Bridgeton, Maine, and Bridget Rogers, a domestic servant.
The 1870 census shows the Lamberts in this house. By then Nathaniel Lambert had retired, and the census records him with $6000 in real property and $6500 in personal property. His son William K. had by then taken over the business in partnership with Joseph E. Bailey, who had come to Georgetown from Newburyport after graduating high school in 1858 and began his working life as a clerk for the Lamberts. About 1867, when Nathaniel Lambert retired, his son and Bailey acquired his interest in the business, which remained Lambert and Bailey until Bailey bought W. K. Lambert’s interest in 1884.

In 1870 Nathaniel Lambert was seventy-eight years old, and he, his son, and his daughter-in-law shared the house with Madison, New Hampshire, native Nellie R. Forrest, then eighteen, and domestic servant Lillian Moulton. In 1876 Caroline Richardson Lambert died of cancer, and three years later William K. Lambert married Nellie Forrest. The couple had a daughter, Anstess (or Antiss) Perley Lambert, a week after they married. In 1880 the household included Nathaniel Lambert, then eighty-eight, the three younger Lamberts, and servant Catherine Fleming. 

Nathaniel Lambert died in December 1881, and the 1884 map shows the 14 North Street property as occupied by William K. Lambert.  He and his second wife remained at 14 North Street until his death in 1895; his widow and daughter moved to Haverhill, where Nellie Forrest Lambert died in 1898 at the age of forty-six. In 1900 Anstiss P. Lambert was boarding and going to school in Haverhill, and in 1910 she was working as a governess in Moultonboro, New Hampshire, when she married mail carrier Herbert A. Richardson. 

In April 1902 Anstiss Lambert sold 14 North Street to Calvin R. Titcomb Jr., who in turn sold it four years later to Charles Hazen Pingree.
 Born in Rowley in 1848, Pingree was the son of Benjamin B. and Hannah Patch Pingree, and he began his working life in the shoe industry. In April 1872 he was working as a shoe cutter when he married Lucy S. Harris of Ipswich, and in October of that year their son Charles Albert Pingree was born. By 1880 Pingree was the manager of a shoe bottoming shop, and the couple had two more children, Alice M. and George E. Pingree.
Anstiss Lambert apparently rented 14 North Street to Charles Pingree by 1900, for he is enumerated next to Henry K. Palmer, a longtime resident of 20 North Street. By then Pingree owned and operated a livery stable at the rear of Palmer’s home. The 1910 census shows him as owning 14 North Street and living there with his wife Lucy, their son Charles, then a bank cashier, and two lodgers, a drawing teacher named Bertha Larkin and a telegraph operator from Maine named Clarence J. Hunstress. The 1920 census shows Pingree and his wife Lucy as the sole occupants of 14 North Street.

In March 1923 Charles H. Pingree died, and the next year Henry K. Palmer, the administrator of his estate, sold 14 North Street to James Watson, a masonry contractor who had emigrated to the United States from England with his wife Clara and son Edward James in 1883.
 The Watsons were living in Georgetown by 1900, and from at least 1905 into the 1930s they lived on North Street beyond Thurlow Road. They rented 14 North Street to the widow Mary A. Brown Thwing, who had herself emigrated from England in 1872. In 1878 she married Charles Wyman Thwing, who had earlier lived in Tewksbury. By 1900 he was working as the proprietor of a provisions store in Georgetown, and the couple had four children—Albert, born 1880; Arthur, born 1883; Helen, born 1884; and Henry, born in 1891. In 1910 the family had moved to Medford, where Thwing worked as a meat cutter, but in 1912 he died at Danvers State Hospital. In 1920 his widow was working as a housekeeper in Hampton, New Hampshire, but by 1930 she had returned to Georgetown and rented this house.
In April 1936 James Watson sold 14 North Street to Carlton William and Helen Louisa Moore, who were then living in Georgetown.
 Born in Connecticut in 1901, Moore was a physician, and though he owned the property for nine years he may never have lived there. The 1940 census shows the soap manufacturer and wood dealer James R. Smith as occupying and owning the house, though his name does not appear in the deed record for the property. The son of Georgetown soap manufacturer Charles Smith, James Smith married Alice J. Hall of Groveland in 1883; their daughter Helen Louise was born in 1895. In 1915 she married the Revere-born electrician J. Irwin Moore, and in 1940 James and Alice Smith lived at 14 North lived their daughter, son-in-law, and their three children Carl, Gloria, and Barbara. Whether J. Irwin Moore was related to Carlton William Moore is not known. 
The 14 North Street property then changed hands several times before March 1956, when Kenneth C. and Marcia Z. Field acquired it. Born in 1929, Field was an optometrist whose office and home were both in the 14 North Street house. He and his wife owned the property until April 2012, when they sold it to Matthew and Raquel Valcourt.
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                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Joseph Little House, built c. 1830, is architecturally significant as a distinctive Greek Revival-style residence of unusual physical integrity in Georgetown center.  Its association with the town’s earliest shoe manufacturers, as well as with later noteworthy residents is historically significant.  The quality and integrity of the house and connected barn along with its historical associations combine to make it eligible for the National Register.  The building also is a contributing component of the village district.     
� Benjamin F. Arrington, ed., Municipal History of Essex County in Massachusetts (New York: Lewis Historical Publishing Co., 1922), 253-54; Henry M. Nelson, “Town of Georgetown History,” in History of Essex County, Massachusetts, with Biographical Sketches of Many of Its Pioneers and Prominent Men, ed. D. Hamilton Hurd (Philadelphia: J. W. Lewis and Co., 1888), 845; Sarah Anna Emery, Reminiscences of a Nonagenarian (Newburyport: William H. Huse, 1879): 87. Emery noted that when Joseph Little first came to Georgetown he and Lewis Hatch borded with Paul Nelson at “New Rowley Corner,” and as the business grew Benjamin Little joined them. “A housekeeper was procured, and Maj. Nelson in turn boarded the young bachleors, who now had also several youths apprenticed to them, besides employing workmen outside.”


� Henry M. Nelson, “Town of Georgetown History,” in History of Essex County, Massachusetts, with Biographical Sketches of Many of Its Pioneers and Prominent Men, ed. D. Hamilton Hurd (Philadelphia: J. W. Lewis and Co., 1888), 835. Nelson stated that “the house now owned by W. K. Lambert” was built at the same time that Joseph and Benjamin Little built their store at Little’s Corner.


� Nelson, “Town of Georgetown History,” 852.


� Emery, Reminiscences, 88, stated that her uncle Joseph Little ““from childhood had been addicted to absent fits of introspection, at these times he also had a habit of picking his nails. I have seen him stand ten minutes, wholly oblivious to the outside world, nervously twitching his fingers.”


� Samuel Little et al. to Nathaniel and W. K. Lambert, 14 January 1864, SED 661:244; Samuel Little; John P. and Harriet Coker; Catherine Coker; George W. and Susan A. Carr; James and Sarah Smith; David and Sarah Emery; Susan L. Tappan; Edward and Jane Peabody; Adolphus W and Eliza Peabody; Sophronia Peabody; Sophia Smith; Hezekiah S and Amanda G. Chase; Amos and Sarah P. Chase; Benjamin L and Lavinia O. Chase; William and Selma E. Chase; James S, and Ann Loring; Salome Schuyler; Joshua and E. B. Webster; Joseph L. and Abby H. Noyes; Calvin and Charity Noyes; Luther Noyes; heirs at law of Joseph Little, to Nathanial and W. K. Lambert, traders, 23 October 1863, SED 657:289.


� Lambert remained in Newbury and preached for two years after his dismission. “With his ministry, closed the union of the town and the church, to the advantage fo both. Mr. Lambert was a very able preacher, widely known and estemmed, and preached the election sermon before the legislature in 1801. In his theological views he was of the Hopkinsonian school of Calvinism. He died at Lyme in 1838.” See Frederic P. Wells, History of Newbury, Vermont, from the Discovery of the Coos Country to Present Time (St. Johnsbury, VT: Caledonian Co., 1902), 175.


� Nelson, “Town of Georgetown History,” 852.


� Biographical Review Containing Life Skethces of Leading Citizens of Essex County Massachusetts (Biographical Review Publishing Co., 1898), 289.


� Anstiss P. Lambert, Haverhill, to Calvin R. Titcomb Jr., 14 April 1902, SED 1671:182; Calvin R. Titcomb Jr. to Charles A. [sic] Pingree, 28 August 1906, SED 1836:189.


� Henry K. Palmer, administrator estate Charles H. Pingree, to James Watson, 12 January 1924, SED 2585:86


� James Watson to Carlton William and Helen Louisa Moore,  1 April 1936, SED 3069:398.


� Carlton William and Helen Louisa Moore to James E. and Ethel A. Wightman, 21 August 1945, SED 3427:241; Bainbridge M. and Nancy G. Larkin, Vista CA, to Kenneth C. and Marcia Z. Field, 30 March 1956, SED 4260:5; Kenneth C. and Marcia Z. Field, Groveland, to Mathew M. and Raquel R. Valcourt, 14 North, 26 April 2012, SED 31287:543.
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